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DGS is a partner in numerous entities that perform unique functions. Below we identify each 
organization, describe the membership, cite the authority under which it operates, and summarize the 

major functions.     
 

BOARDS, COUNCILS, COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES, TASK FORCES & 
JOINT POWER AUTHORITIES 

ENTITY MEMBERSHIP AUTHORITY MAJOR FUNCTIONS 

1. AMERICANS 
WITH 
DISABILITIES ACT 
(ADA) TASK 
FORCE 
http://www.disability
accessinfo.ca.gov/ser
vices.htm
 

 DGS Director 
 Rehabilitation 

Director 
 State Personnel 

Board Director 
 State Architect 
 Fair Employment 

and Housing 
Director   

Government Code 
Section 11135 

State Administrative 
Manual MM 03-08 

In 2000 Governor Gray Davis 
appointed the Americans with 
Disabilities Act Interagency Task Force 
(ADA TF). Addresses the state’s 
compliance with Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) related to 
physical and communication 
accessibility to state facilities and 
programs. 

2. [STATE] 
ALLOCATION 
BOARD 

http://www.opsc.dgs.
ca.gov/SAB/Default.h
tm

 

 DGS Director  

 Department of 
Finance Director 

 Superintendent of 
Public Instruction 

 Three Senators 
 Three Assembly 

members 
 One Governor 

appointee 

Government Code 
Section 15490;  

Education Code 
Sections 16000 - 
16105. 

Provides funding to school districts for: 
 New school construction (Joint 

Use Facilities and Charter Schools) 
 Modernizing existing schools 
 State Relocatable classrooms, and 
 Facilities maintenance 

Also administers state bond funds.  The 
Office of Public School Construction 
does staff work for the Board. 

3. BUILD 
CALIFORNIA TASK 
FORCE 
http://www.ciwmb.ca
.gov/GreenBuilding/
TaskForce/

 

30 participants, 
including DGS, the 
SCS Agency, 
Department of 
Finance, Governor's 
Office of Research 
and Planning, State 
Fire Marshall, 
Administrative Office 
of the Courts, 
University of 
California and 
California State 
Universities. 

No enabling 
legislation required. 

Build California expedites public works 
projects to stimulate the economy by 
increasing jobs.  This Task Force 
oversees expedited public works 
projects planned by several large 
departments.  The DGS is also 
streamlining its design and construction 
processes to implement this initiative. 
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ENTITY MEMBERSHIP AUTHORITY MAJOR FUNCTIONS 

4. BUILDING 
STANDARDS 
COMMISSION 
(State and 
Consumer Services 
Agency) 

http://www.bsc.ca.go
v/abt_bsc.html

11 members appointed 
by the Governor and 
confirmed by the State 
Senate. The cabinet 
secretary of the State 
and Consumer 
Services Agency, or 
the secretary's 
representative, serves 
as the Commission 
Chair. 

Health and Safety 
Code 
Sections18920and 
18926. 

Administers California's building codes, 
including adopting, approving, 
publishing, and implementing codes and 
standards. 

 

 

 

5. BUILDING 
STANDARDS 
COORDINATING 
COUNCIL 

http://www.bsc.ca.go
v/abt_bsc/abt_cncl.ht
m     

In the office of the 
Building Standards 
Commission’s 
executive director the 
Coordinating 
Council’s eight 
members include one 
appointed by the 
Department of General 
Services. 

Assist  agencies 
pursuant to Health 
and Safety Code  
Sections 18933 
and18930.  

Subject to the pleasure of the 
Commission, the Council drafts 
proposed building standards to: 

• Ensure coordination in the 
proposal of building standards  

• Assist in the development of 
building standards  

• Resolve conflicting building 
standards 

6. CAPITOL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

http://www.eastend.d
gs.ca.gov/AboutTheP
roject/default.htm

Nine Members: four 
appointed by 
Governor, two by  
Assembly, two by 
Senate and one by 
DGS Director  

Government Code 
Sections 8164.1 and 
8164.3. 

Advises DGS on its responsibilities 
involving the Capitol Area Plan and the 
Capitol View Protection Act. 

7. CAPITOL AREA 
DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

http://www.cadanet.o
rg

Five Board Members: 
two appointed by DGS 
Director, two by 
Sacramento Mayor and 
one appointed by 
Board) 

Government Code 
Section 8164 et seq. 

Works with DGS Director and 
Sacramento Mayor to direct 
redevelopment of a designated area in 
downtown Sacramento. 

 

8. DIVISION OF 
THE STATE 
ARCHITECT 
ADVISORY 
BOARD             (916) 
327-7230 

john.vester@dgs.ca
.gov

(916) 445-1325 

19 (voting) members 
appointed by State 
Architect  

Includes 8 state reps 
and 3 DGS reps 

Education Code, 
Sections 17280 et 
seq. and Sections 
81130 et seq.   

 
California Building 
Standards 
Administrative Code 
(Part 1, Title 24, 
C.C.R.)  
Article 9. 

Advises the State Architect on the 
administration of the Field Act The 
Board also serves as a board of appeals 
in matters regarding public buildings 
under the jurisdiction of the State 
Architect.  For specific policies and 
procedures see:  

http://www.dsa.dgs.ca.gov/AdvisoryBoard/p
oliciesandprocedures.htm  
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9. GOVERNOR’S 
EMERGENCY 
OPERATIONS 
EXECUTIVE 
COUNCIL 
http://2007-
08.archives.ebudget
.ca.gov/BudgetSum
mary/ERP/6868358
.html 

 

DGS Director, along 
with 32 other entities 
having 
responsibilities for 
emergency planning 
and response 

 Meetings “No less 
than quarterly” 

Executive Order  
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S-04-06  Assess and provide information to 
the Governor, Legislature and 
local agencies;  

 Develop budget, legislative 
proposals, and admin actions;  

 Identify additional resources to 
improve prevention and response,  

 Assist in managing emergency 
response 

10. LOS ANGELES 
STATE BUILDING 
AUTHORITY 
George Jones,  Building 
Manager III         
(213) 897-2243 

 

 Los Angeles 
State Building 
Authority  

 Real Estate 
Services Division 

Government Code 
Section 6517 

The centrally located and innovative 
Ronald Reagan State Building 
provides convenient access to state 
government offices in a central area.   

For details see:  
http://www.buildings.dgs.ca.gov/Ronald
Reaganbuilding/BuildingInformation/def
ault.htm

11. OAKLAND 
STATE BUILDING 
AUTHORITY 

http://www.oaklandn
et.com/government/s
plash/elihu_splash.ht
ml

 City of Oakland  

 DGS Real Estate 
Services Division 

Government Code  
Section 6517 

Planned and directed the construction 
of the Elihu M. Harris State Office 
Building, which consolidated the 
operations of over 40 state 
departments and agencies throughout 
the Bay Area.   

 

ENTITY MEMBERSHIP AUTHORITY MAJOR FUNCTIONS 

http://www.buildings.dgs.ca.gov/RonaldReaganbuilding/BuildingInformation/default.htm
http://www.buildings.dgs.ca.gov/RonaldReaganbuilding/BuildingInformation/default.htm
http://www.buildings.dgs.ca.gov/RonaldReaganbuilding/BuildingInformation/default.htm


 4  

 

ENTITY MEMBERSHIP AUTHORITY MAJOR FUNCTIONS 

12. PENSION 
OBLIGATION 
FUND 
COMMITTEE 

http://www.dof.ca.go
v/boards_and_commi
ttees/pobc/  

Governor or his or 
her designee,  
-Director of Finance 
-Controller 
-Treasurer  
-Secretary of 
Business, 
Transportation and 
Housing  
-Director of General 
Services, and  
-Director of 
Transportation 

 

Government Code 
Section 16920. 

The Pension Obligation Bond 
Committee, formed pursuant to the 
California Pension Obligation 
Financing Act, May 5, 2003: 
Authorizes the Pension Obligation 
Bond Committee to fund or refund 
the State's pension obligations for 
fiscal year 2003-04 

The law designates the Director of 
Finance as the chairperson and the 
State Treasurer as agent for sale of the 
bonds.  

The Pension Restructuring Bond Act 
of 2004 (Chapter 215, Statutes of 
2004 [SB 1106]) authorizes the 
Committee to issue bonds to pay a 
portion of the State's pension costs in 
two fiscal years. And continuously 
appropriates money from the General 
Fund to pay principal and interest on 
any bond issued pursuant to its 
provisions. 

13. PRISON 
INDUSTRY 
ADVISORY 
BOARD (PIA) 
http://www.pia.ca.go
v/PIB/Board_Membe
rs.html
 
MEETINGS: 
http://www.pia.ca.go
v/PIB/Board_Agenda
.html

 Director of 
Corrections, 
Chair 

 DGS Director 

 Secretary of 
Technology, 
Trade and 
Commerce 

 Two Assembly 
appointees 

 Two Senate 
appointees 

 Four Governor 
appointees 

Penal Code Section 
2802. 

Sets PIA policy, oversees PIA 
industries’ performance, determines 
new industries to be established, and 
appoints and monitors the General 
Manager’s performance.  

The Board also serves as a public 
hearing body to assure that PIA 
enterprises are self-sufficient and do 
not adversely affect private enterprise. 
The Board actively solicits public 
input into decisions about expanding 
existing prison industries, or 
developing new ones. 
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ENTITY MEMBERSHIP AUTHORITY MAJOR FUNCTIONS 

14. [STATE] 
PUBLIC WORKS 
BOARD 

Karen Finn, 
Administrative 
Secretary (916 445-
9694) 

http://www.spwb.ca.
gov/

 DGS Director 

 Department of  
Finance Director  

 Department of  
Transportation 
Director  

 State Controller 

 State Treasurer 

Government Code 
Section 15770. 

Approves plans and funds for major 
state construction projects except state 
highways. 

The Real Estate Services Section of the 
Professional Services Branch provides 
staff support to the PSB/DOF for 
property acquisition and due diligence. 

15. PUBLIC 
WORKS 
CONTRACT 
ARBITRATION 
COMMITTEE 
http://law.justia.com/
california/codes/pcc/
10245-10245.4.html  

 DGS Director  
 Director of Office 

of Administrative 
Hearing 

 Director of 
Transportation 

 Director of Water 
Resources 

 Three Governor 
appointees 

 

Public Contract Code 
Sections 10240 through 
10245.5;  
California Code of 
Regulations Title 1 
Division 2, Sections 
1300 TO 1398.  
 

Makes recommendations to state 
agencies regarding practices and 
procedures under the Public Works 
Contract Arbitration (PWCA) 
Program (this program involves the 
resolution of disputes between public 
agencies and contractors). 

16. SAN 
FRANCISCO 
STATE BUILDING 
AUTHORITY 

http://www.sfgov.org
/site/sfra_index.asp

Department of 
General Services and 
San Francisco 
Redevelopment 
Agency 

 

Government Code 
Section 6517 

A 1982 agreement resulted in the 
construction of the Governor Edmund 
G. "Pat" Brown Building which 
houses the California Public Utilities 
Commission.  The Commission has 
occupied the building since its 
construction. 

17. SEARCH AND  
RESCUE 
MEMORIAL 
REVIEW 
COMMITTEE 

http://info.sen.ca.gov/
pub/07-
08/bill/asm/ab_0101-
0150/ab_136_bill_20
070801_amended_sen
_v96.pdf

Includes DGS 
Director, the State 
Historical 
Preservation officer, 
a Senate member, and 
an Assembly 
member. 

Government Code 
Section 8601 and 
Section 14628  

The California State Sheriffs Search 
and Rescue Coordinators...”may plan 
and construct a memorial in the 
Capitol Historic Region, in 
consultation with the Department” [of 
General Services] funded through 
private donations. 

http://www.spwb.ca.gov/
http://www.spwb.ca.gov/
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ENTITY MEMBERSHIP AUTHORITY MAJOR FUNCTIONS 

18. SMALL 
BUSINESS 
COUNCIL 
http://www.pd.dgs.ca
.gov/smbus/sbcouncil
.htm

Various volunteer 
members from DGS 
and the private 
business community 

Government Code 
Section 14723. 

Advises DGS on state contracting and 
purchasing opportunities, programs 
and policies that affect small 
businesses. 

19. STATE 
HISTORICAL 
BUILDING 
SAFETY BOARD 

http://www.dsa.dgs.c
a.gov/SHBSB/default
.htm

21 members 
appointed by member 
organizations, 
including the State 
Architect. 

Health and Safety code 
Sections 18950 to 18961 

Administers the State Historical 
Building Code as authorized by.  It 
governs the building code for all 
qualified historical buildings in the 
state.  DGS provides staff to the 
Board. 

20. STATE RACE 
TRACK LEASING 
COMMISSION 
(DEL MAR) 
http://chrb.ca.gov/
racetrack_del_mar.ht
m

Three members of 
the nine-member 
22nd District 
Agricultural 
Association Board sit 
on the Race Track 
Leasing Commission. 

Food and Agricultural 
Code Sections 4351to 
4353. 

The Del Mar Fairgrounds and 
Horsepark equestrian facility are 
operated by the 22nd District 
Agricultural Association on behalf of 
the State. 

The RTLC meets once at the 
beginning of the year and once in the 
summer.  

21. VICTIM 
COMPENSATION 
AND 
GOVERNMENT  
CLAIMS BOARD 
(916) 491-6420 
(Formerly State 
Board of Control) 

http://www.boc.ca.go
v/

 DGS Director 
(Replaced by 
SCSA on 1/1/04) 

 State Controller 
 One Governor  

appointee 

Government Code 
Sections 13900 to 
13915. 

Acts as an intermediary between state 
government and people to resolve 
claims and grievances relating to: 

 Victims of crime, and 
 Money or damage claims against 
the state. 
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